1995

# Wayne Takashi Satsuda and Seon Sil Satsuda, his wife v. Hasin Oh and Hyung Ja Oh, his wife : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

**JURISDICTIONAL AUTHORITY**

Jurisdiction to hear the above entitled appeal is conferred upon the Court pursuant to Utah Code Annotated 78-2-3(J).

### **STATEMENT OF CASE**

This civil appeal brought by the Appellants, Satsudas, as buyers and the Appellees, Ohs, as sellers of a forty (40) unit motel, known as Capitol Motel and located at 1792 South State Street, Salt Lake City, Utah.

Satsudas filed their complaint on March 15, 1991 alleging three cause of actions: (1) Breach of the Express Warranties contained in the Earnest Money Agreement between Satsudas and Ohs, dated November 16, 1989; (2) Intentional misrepresentation and failure to disclose, a breach of implied covenant to deal in good faith; and (3) Fraud (R.O.A. 2-7). Addendum No. 1:

Ohs filed a Motion to Dismiss for failure to joint an indispensable party, i.e., Ohs' predecessor, Ums, third party defendants. (R.O.A. 22-26). The motion was denied on June 24, 1991.

Ohs filed a Third Party Complaint against Ums. The first three causes of action is similar to Satsudas' complaint. Ohs added a fourth claim of action for indemnification and contribution for any judgment against Ohs by Satsudas; fifth cause of action requests punitive damages and the sixth cause of action alleges unjust enrichment (R.O.A. 52-56). Addendum No. 2:

Ums filed a Motion to Quash Service of Process on September 25, 1991. After various pleadings between Ohs and Ums, the Motion to Quash was granted on January 4, 1993 without prejudice (R.O.A. 163-165).

Ohs appealed the Order quashing the service of process (R.O.A. 177-178) on February 2, 1993.

Ohs' Motion to Reconsider or In the Alternative, Motion for Leave to File Third Party Complaint reiterating Satsudas' claims, requesting indemnity and reimbursement for Ums should Satsudas prevail in their claim against Ohs and adding three independent causes of action.

After the trial, the Court dismissed the plaintiffs' claim and Third Party Complaint and awarded Ohs Attorney's fees of \$44,959.86 (Judgment entered May 5, 1995 and June 9, 1995). Addendum 7-8.

Also the Court awarded Ums attorney's fees against Plaintiffs in the amount of \$56,126.77. (Supplemental Judgment entered July 7, 1995). Addendum 18-19.

### STATEMENT OF ISSUES

1. Whether the abrogation clause (paragraph O of Earnest Money Agreement) reserving express warranties survives the merger doctrine set forth in *Secor v. Knight*, 716 P.2d 970 (Utah 1986) *Maynard v. Wharton*, 284 Utah Adv. Rep. 35, February 23, 1996.

Appellate standard for review of the Court's determination is one of "correctness". *Schafir v. Harrigan*, 849 P.2d 1384, (Ut. App. 1984) No particular defense is given to the Court ruling on questions of law. *Provo River Water Users v. Morgan*, 857 P.2d 927, 931 (Utah 1993), *Embassy Group, Inc. v. Hatch*, 865 P.2d 1366 (Utah App. 1993).

2. Whether the express warranties in the Earnest Money Agreement as to the plumbing, heating, air conditioning, ventilating, electrical systems, comes within the exception to the merger doctrine, as collateral rights which survive the merger doctrine.

Appellate standard for review is one of correctness. *Schafir v. Harrigan*, Supra, *Provo Water Users Association v. Morgan*, Supra.

3. Whether representations and understanding of the Satsudas and Ohs that a forty (40) unit rental operation was being sold and purchased, renders the Ohs legally responsible for the cost of restoration and loss of profits arising from the closure of the units to meet the parties' understanding.

Standard for review is the Court's Finding of Facts are reviewed under a clearly erroneous standard. *Alta Indus. Ltd. v. Hurst*, 846 P.2d 1281 (Utah 1993). The Court's Finding of Facts would be clearly erroneous if they are lacking in support as to be against the clear weight of the evidence. *Doelle vs. Bradley*, 784 P.2d 1176, 1178 (Utah 1989).

4. Whether the Ohs breached their obligation to perform and contact in good faith when Ohs represented that the Capitol Motel had forty (40) rental units and had income arising from the rents of forty (40) units after being advised by his predecessor, Ums, that five to six of the rooms were added without a building permit.

Standard for review: Appellant must marshal evidence in support of the findings and then demonstrate that despite the evidence the Court finding one so lacking in support as to be against the clear weight of evidence. *West Valley City v. Majestic Inv. Co.*, 818, P.2d 1311, 1313 (Utah App. 1991).

5. Whether Satsudas met their burden of proof, i.e.; clear and convincing evidence that Ohs' actions constituted fraud when Ohs sold a forty (40) unit remodeled motel, knew that some of the rooms were built without complying with code requirements. Satsudas were induced the purchase by the income reportedly to be made from a forty (40) unit operation and the Satsudas relied on Ohs' representation and could not have discovered that the rooms were not in conformity by the visual inspection of the premises.

Standard for review: The standard for review is similar to issue 3 and 4.

6. Whether Ohs are entitled to attorneys fees against Satsudas under wording of the Earnest Money Agreement which, if abrogated and merged into the closing documents, would necessarily eliminate any contractual basis for awarding Ohs attorney's fees.

Standard for Review is one of correctness and no particular deference given to the Trial Court ruling in question of law. *Provo River Water User v. Morgan*, Supra.

7. Whether the Deed of Trust and Trust Deed Note between Ohs and Satsudas serve as a contractual basis for awarding Ohs' attorney's fees when Satsuda were not in default in their obligation under the Trust Deed or Trust Deed Note.

Standard for Review is the same as Issue No. 6.

8. Whether the Assignment of Contract between the Ohs, as assignors and Satsudas, as Assignees, serve as a contractual bases for awarding attorney's fees to Ohs

against the Satsudas where there is no act or omission with the Satsudas to trigger a breach or default by Satsuda in relation with the Satsudas' performance in the real estate contract.

Standard for Review is the same as Issue No. 6.

9. Whether the Assignment of Contract between the Ohs and Satsudas can be a contractual bases for awarding attorney's fees to Ums against Satsudas when there is not breach or default by Satsudas in their performance to pay Ums.

Standard for Review is the same as Issue No. 6.

10. Whether the Real Estate Contract between the Ohs and Ums is a contract basis for awarding attorney's fees to Ums against the Satsudas where the Paragraph 15 of the real estate contract reads

"Attorney's Fees: Both parties agree that, should either party default in any of the covenants or agreements herein contained, the non-defaulting party or, should litigation be commenced, the prevailing party in litigation shall be entitled to all costs and expenses, including a reasonable attorney's fee, which may arise or accrue from enforcing or terminating this contract, or in obtaining possession of the Property, or in pursuing any remedy provided hereunder or by applicable law" and where there is no action enforcing or terminating the real estate contract for or against the Satsudas.

Standard for Review is the same as No. 6.

11. Whether the reasonableness of Ohs claim for attorneys fees can be legally sustained where the Ohs verified application for attorney's fees fails to state that the fees billed for the total representation of the case, i.e., defense of Satsudas claim and prosecution of third party complaint are fees customarily charged in the locality for similar services.

Standard for Review is the same as No. 6.

12. Whether the reasonableness of the fee charged by Grant W. P. Morrison, defendant's predecessor attorney can be legally sustained without a verification by Grant W. P. Morrison and based solely upon Mr. Morrison's billing to the Ohs.



12. Whether the reasonableness of the fee charged by Grant W. P. Morrison, defendant's predecessor attorney can be legally sustained without a verification by Grant W. P. Morrison and based solely upon Mr. Morrison's billing to the Ohs.

Standard for Review as to the reasonableness of attorney's fees is in the sound discretion of the trial court and will not be overturned in the absence of a showing of clear abuse. *Dixie State Bank v. Bracken*, 764 P2d 985 (UT 1988). Although considerable deference is accorded the factual finding, conclusions of law arising from these findings are to be reviewed for correctness and are given no special deference on appeal, *Bingham v. Bingham*, 872 P2d 1065.

13. Whether the reasonableness of the total fee claimed by the Ohs can be sustained where verified application for attorney's fees includes attorneys fees for the defense of Satsudas' claims and the prosecution of Third Party Complaint without delineating or segregating which fees are applicable to the separate actions.

Standard for review is same as issue No. 1 and No. 12 .

14. Whether the liability of Satsudas for Ums' attorney's fees can be legally sustained under the "pass through theory" under *Collier v. Heinz*, 827 P2d 982 (UT. App. 1992) where there is no breach of contract or negligence asserted or claimed by the Satsudas, Ohs or Ums and where there are no facts to support the trial court's finding that the third party attorney's fees is a necessary step by the defendant to defend Satsudas' claims.

Standard for review is one for corrections, *Provo River Waters Ass'n v. Morgan*, *Supra*.

15. Whether the trial Court erred in granting a partial summary judgment against the plaintiffs' damage claim when the plaintiffs' damages included cost of restoration and loss of income, over and above the benefit of the bargain rule.

Standard for review is one of correctness as stated in paragraph 1 and 2 above.

## **DETERMINATIVE PROVISIONS, STATUTES AND RULES**

The appellate is not aware of any determinative provisions, statutes or ordinances, rules or regulations which would be determinative of the appeal. The appellants will rely principally upon case law and building ordinances which are set forth in the table of contents

## **STATEMENT OF FACTS**

The parties entered into a Statement of Stipulated Facts. (R.O.A V3, 1184-1194). Addendum, 3. The essential facts, set forth in the Statement of Stipulated Facts may be summarized.

## **UMS-OHS HISTORY**

Mr. Um, an experienced real estate and involved in buying and selling of real estate, purchased the Capitol Motel on September 1, 1982. He owned and operated the motel for five years during which time he made improvements to the structure, altered some of the motel to operate a grocery store, and notably, converted the grocery store into five additional rental units, giving the Capitol Motel a total of forty (40) rooms available for rent.

Mr. Um knew that no building permit had been obtained for the conversion of the grocery store into these five additional rooms nor did Um instruct his contractor to obtain a permit. (RDA V3, 1786).

Mr. Um states that the kitchenette units were installed by his predecessor, i.e.; prior to September 1982. (Tr. 267, L 13-14). He placed an add in the 1984 telephone directory advertising kitchenette units (Tr. 267, L 14-15). No such kitchenettes were listed in the 1983 telephone directory. (Stip. Exh. #11).

Also in 1984, Mr. Um advertised forty (40) remodeled units in the telephone directory. (Sti. Exh. #11).

Mr. Um applies for and renews the Salt Lake City license for 34 rooms. (Statement of Stipulated Facts V3, 1187, par. 18). He further advises Oh to do the same. (Tr. 159, L20) (Tr. 164, L23).

In the negotiations with Oh, Um reported to Oh that he had remodeled and reconstructed and fixed up the rooms and made repairs to the motel. (Statement of Stipulated Facts, V3, P 1188, para. 2) On two occasions Um told Oh that the 5-6 rooms were built without a building permit (Tr. 158, L 22-25) (Tr. 159, L1-4) (Statement of Stipulated Facts, V3 P. 1192, Para. 46), Addendum 3.

Subsequently, in 1986, Um passed a fire inspection after repairs were made to repair the roof. (Tr. 1266, L. 8-11). However, the records show that the building permit was issued in October, 1984 (Stip. Exh. 26) and had nothing to do with the five additional units. (Tr. 168, L7-10)

The routine inspection by the Health Department and Fire Department noted deficiencies relating to each of their respective spheres of interest during 1982-1987. (Stip. Trial Exh., 2-7) For the most part, 34 rooms were listed in the business license from 1982 to 1989 when Satsudas purchased the motel.

### **SATSUDA-OH TRANSACTION**

Satsuda purchased the motel from Ohs in November, 1989. The earnest money for \$620,000.00 was signed on November 16, 1989. (Stip. Trial Exh. 14). Mr. Satsuda had no prior experience in the purchase or operation of a motel. (Tr.-5, L4).

During the negotiations, Ohs verbally represented and Ohs business card reported that Capitol Motel was a 40 unit motel (R.O.A. V3, 1190). This representation was consistent with the 1989-1990 Salt Lake Telephone Directory listing forty (40) remodeled rooms in 1989-90, an increase from 34 rooms listed in the same directory in 1983. (Stip. Exh. 11) (Tr. 9, L 15-18)

Additionally, Oh gave Satsuda income figures for 1987 through 1989 showing rental income from 40 rooms. (Statement of income figures were made by Mr. Kim, a real

estate agent who worked in behalf of Mr. Oh. (Tr. 242, L 10) (Tr. 246, L16-17) Mr. Kim got the income figure from Mr. Oh. (Tr. 243, L 15-16)

Subsequent income figures were provided by the Ohs in the fourth meeting. (Tr. 16, L 10-17, Exh. 38)

Mr. Kim testified that a forty (40) unit rental motel was involved and that Oh stated that Oh did not tell Mr. Kim that any units cannot be rentable” (Tr. 245, L6-9) and so represented to Satsuda (Tr. 245, L 11-12). Mr. Kim prepared the Earnest Money Agreement (Tr. 245, L14-15). Mr. Kim was paid \$6,200.00 by Ohs. (Tr. 246, L19)

The income figures were produced by Ohs at the second meeting (Tr. 10, Exh. 37). Again, income from the 40 units operation (Statement of Stipulated Facts, V3, 1194, Para. 35).

Thereafter, Satsudas inspected four to five rooms (Exhibit 38) selected by the Ohs, situated in the outside perimeter of the horse shoe shape building (Tr. 13, L 7-14). Satsudas were denied inspection of some thirteen rooms in the building housing the office because they were occupied (Tr. 13, L 18-24). Satsudas also inspected the laundry room also in the main perimeter of the horse shoe shaped building. (Tr. 18, L 14)

After the inspection of five rooms and laundry room, Ohs stated that they should trust him and that the other rooms would be in good condition as the four to five rooms inspected. (Tr. 20, L1-4)

Mr. Oh never reported that seven rooms had kitchenettes installed without building permits and that units 35, 36, 37, 38 and 39 were constructed without building permits. (Tr. 20, L5-11).

Mr. Satsuda and Ms. Satsuda raised the subject matter of the parking lots in their discussion with the Ohs. Oh stated that there was no problems. (Tr. 176, L8-9)

The following documents were signed at the closing on January 5, 1990. (Stip. Exh. 8)

1. Warranty Deed.

6. Trust Deed Note

7. Other documents relating to personal property

Satsudas commenced operation of the motel on January 1, 1990. (Stip. Facts, V3, 1190, Para. 38). He operated the motel for five days prior to the closing date of January 5, 1990. (Tr. 25, L25)

On January 2, 1990, Satsudas went to the Salt Lake Business Licensing Officer to get a business license for Capitol Motel under his name. He did not take the old license with him. (Tr. 26, L24-19) The clerk accessed the computer and wrote the application. (Tr. 26, L17-21). He did examine the business license on January 1, 1990 but did not notice the number of rooms listed.. . (Stip. Fact, 1191, Para. 39)

Satsudas received a receipt from the Business License Department.

Lawrence Suggars, Building License Inspector, came to the motel on January 31, 1990. He examined the rooms and ultimately issued a Notice of Deficiency in conjunction with plumbing and electrical inspectors called in by Mr. Suggars. (Tr. 30, L3-25). The plumbing and electrical deficiencies were hidden and not readily observable by walking into the room. (Tr. 31, L21-25) (Tr. 32, L18-212) (Tr. 33, L1-21).

The Notice of Deficiency (Stip. Exh. 15) states:

Code Violation -Interior Inspection

UHC 1001 (e,f) Units 2-7 have been converted to units with cooking facilities without conforming to electrical and plumbing requirements and must be brought up to code, open electrical, improper vents, traps and waist lines.

UHC 1001 (e,f,b) Units 0 and 34-40 have been added to the complex without conforming with plumbing and electrical requirements, open electrical, improper vents, traps and waist lines.

Further, the Notice of Deficiency states that the additional units were added without complying with the 21.12.010 of City Code which requires that all zoning codes be met at the time of conversion ....required parking provided.

“Each building is also required under Section 104 of the building code to meet all building codes at the time of the addition or alteration.”

“Because of the deficiency, the building was determined to be substandard and declared a public nuisance...” Addendum 3.

Unit #35 was permanently closed to occupancy Addendum 23.

Satsudas also received the notice and order from the Salt Lake City Corporation, Department of Building and Health Services, issued on February 12, 1990 requiring Satsudas to correct the deficiency listed in the Notice of Deficiency (Stip. Facts, Exhibit 29). Addendum 22.

The notice and order required that work to correct the deficiency commence within five days from the date and the notice or secure the rooms by having all doors locked. (Stip. Facts, Exh. 29). Pursuant to that notice and order and conversation with Larry Suggars, Satsudas closed rooms 0-7 upstairs and rooms 35 to 39 downstairs. (Tr. 37, L10-11). Room 35 and room 37 remained occupied with Mr. Suggars’ permission due to the tenant’s infirmities. (Tr. 37, 15-18). Mr. Suggars denies he told Satsudas to close the rooms. (Tr. 131)

Satsudas began construction on repairs of rooms 1 through 6. The cost of the restoration to conform to code was \$13,621.00 (Tr. 39, L21-25) (Stip. Exh. 16). These rooms were available for rent in September of 1990.

The other rooms, 0, 7, 35, 36, 37, 38 and 39 presented a different problem. Capitol Motel was only zoned for 33 rooms; i.e., one parking stall for each room. The restoration of the additional rooms could not be accomplished unless Satsuda obtained a parking variance (Stip. Facts, V3, 1192, Para. 48, 49). The variance was approved in November, 1990 and Satsudas incurred \$2,500.00 in attorney’s fees. (Stip. Facts, V3, 1192, Para. 50-52)

Restoration of rooms 0, 7, 36 through 39 started in February 1991 and completed in March, 1991 (Stip. Fact, V3, 1192, Para. 50, 5). Room 35 was permanently closed.

(Tr. 46, L7). Satsudas paid \$23,666.00 for the restoration of these rooms to conform to code (Tr. 46, L23

### **ARGUMENT**

#### **THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN RULING THAT THERE WAS A CONTRACTUAL BASIS FOR THE AWARD OF ATTORNEY'S FEES TO OHS.**

The award of attorney's fees was mentioned in the Finding of Facts and Conclusions of Law and judgment dated May 2, 1995 (R.O.A. 1653) Addendum 7 and 8 in favor of defendants, Ohs, against plaintiffs, Satsudas, for attorney's fees. The award fails to be supported by any findings of fact as to the basis of the award of attorney's fees to Ohs.

The first Amended Order of Dismissal of Complaint and Third Party Complaint and Judgment in favor of the defendants, Ohs, against the Plaintiffs, Satsudas, for attorney's fees in paragraph 3 is the first factual basis for attorney's fees. (R.O.A. 1715). Addendum 12 and 13.

### **JUDGMENT STATES:**

The trial court's "finding that the attorney's fees requested are reasonable and necessary and that an adequate basis in contract exists for such award." Emphasis mine. (R.O.A. 001717, paragraph 4). Addendum 12 and 13.

The trial court fails to disclose which contract upon which the award of Ohs' attorney's fees is based and fails to make any finding to the basis therefore which would be sufficient to reverse the trial court's award.

However, a detailed examination of each of the contracts between the Satsudas and Ohs is made to determine as a matter of law, the correctness of the trial court's ruling. *Dixie State Bank v. Bracken*, 764 P2d 985 (Utah 1988).

## GENERAL LEGAL AUTHORITY

Attorney's fees are awardable only if provided for by statute or contract and if, by contract, only as the contract allows by its terms, *Dixie State Bank v. Bracken*, 764 P2d 985, 988 (Ut. 1988), *Mountain States broadcasting Co. v. Neale*, 783 P2d 551 (Ut. App. 1989); *Collier v. Heinz*, 827 P2d 982 (Ut. App. 1992), and cases cited therein; *Grahn v. Gregory*, 800 P2d 320 (Ut. App. 1990).

"In Utah, attorney's fees authorized by contract are awardable only in accordance with the explicit terms of the contract and only to the extent permitted by the contract". *Turtle Management, Inc., v. Haggis Management, Inc.*, 645 P2d 667, 671 (Ut. 1982); *Mountain States Broadcasting Co., v. Neale*, 783 P2d 551, 555-56 (Ut. App. 1989), *Maynard v. Wharton*, 284 Utah Ad. Rep. 35, filed February 23, 1996. Emphasis mine.

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