1995

# Wayne Takashi Satsuda and Seon Sil Satsuda v. Hasin Oh and Myung Oh : Brief of Appellee

Utah Court of Appeals

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

#### SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The format of the argument that follows generally tracks the presentation of argument in the Satsudas' Opening Brief. With respect to the Satsudas' claim that there was no basis in contract for the District Court's award of attorney's fees against them, the Ohs show the Court multiple sources in contract for that award as well as evidence in the record before the District Court that costs and fees were warranted under the terms of those agreements.

In reply to the Satsudas' assertion that the District Court erred in its award of fees in favor of the third party defendants and against them, the Argument shows that under established Utah decisional law, taxing of a third-party defendant's fees directly against the plaintiff in the case in chief is warranted where it was foreseeable that the plaintiff's claims, though ultimately unsuccessful, would trigger the third party action.

The Argument next takes on the Satsudas' twin claims of fraud against the Ohs, both of which relate to the land sale

transaction from which this litigation stems. The Argument demonstrates that under the doctrines of caveat emptor and merger, as recently defined and illuminated in the decisions of this Court, both claims are barred as a matter of law.

Finally, the Argument addresses the Satsudas' belated special damages claim. This claim sounds in a theory of "loss of the bargain" and concerns costs of repair to the Capitol Motel that the Satsudas incurred, if at all, in 1991. Citing case law arising in Utah and other jurisdictions that have treated the issue, the Argument shows that this claim was extinguished by the Satsudas' realization of an embarrassingly great profit on the sale of the Capitol Motel in 1994.

#### ARGUMENT

**THE DISTRICT COURT PROPERLY DETERMINED THAT  
THE SATSUDAS ARE LIABLE FOR THE ATTORNEY'S FEES  
THAT THE OHS AND THE UMS INCURRED IN THIS LITIGATION.**

Beginning on page 14 of their Opening Brief, the Satsudas inflict on this Court and the other parties to this appeal sixteen pages of virtually impenetrable prose and legal argument in opposition to the District Court's award of attorney's fees to the Ohs and the Ums. The thesis of this segment of the Opening Brief escapes detection but at the risk of injecting unwanted precision to the Satsudas' contentions on attorneys fees, the Ohs will represent to the Court that the relevant issues with respect to this matter are these:

1. Is there any basis in contract for the District Court's award of attorneys fees in favor of the Ohs and against the Satsudas?

2. Is there any basis in contract for the District Court's award of attorneys fees in favor of the Ums and against the Satsudas?

3. May the "third party fee" rule be employed to tax the Ums' attorney's fees directly against the Satsudas?

As the Ohs show in the remainder of this Brief, the District Court rested its decision to assess the Ohs' and Ums' attorney's fees directly against the Satsudas on a sound legal foundation. It therefore is incumbent on this Court to conclude that the District Court acted within the bounds of its discretion in awarding those fees and to affirm that Court's ruling. However, should the Court determine that the Ohs' Brief presents persuasive arguments in favor of the award of their fees and costs against the Satsudas, it may sustain the District Court's decision based on those arguments even if the District Court did not consider them. State v. Elder, 815 P.2d 1341, 1344 n.4 (Utah App. 1991).

**THERE ARE LEGALLY SUFFICIENT BASES  
IN CONTRACT TO SUPPORT THE TRIAL COURT'S  
AWARD OF ATTORNEYS FEES IN FAVOR OF THE OHS.**

On or immediately after January 5, 1990, the Ohs and the Satsudas executed several interrelated documents to consummate the sale of the Capitol Motel to the Satsudas. The terms of at

least two of these documents provide a sufficient contractual basis to support the District Court's award of attorney's fees in favor of the Ohs.

A.    **The January 5, 1990 Deed of Trust.**   On January 5, 1990, the Satsudas, as trustors, and the Ohs, as beneficiaries, executed a "Deed of Trust with Assignment Of Rents" in conjunction with the sale of the Capitol Motel. The Deed of Trust designated the Capitol Motel as security for the Satsudas' obligation to pay the Ohs approximately \$102,000.00 for their interest in the Motel. See Stipulated Trial Exhibit No. 8, Addendum to this Brief, No. 1. The Deed of Trust contains the following provisions with respect to attorney's fees:

4.    [The Satsudas agree] to appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the security hereof, the title to said property, or the rights or powers of [the Ohs] or Trustees; and should [the Ohs] or Trustee elect to appear in or defend any such actions or proceeding, to pay all costs and expenses, including cost of evidence of title and attorneys fees in a reasonable sum incurred by [the Ohs] or Trustee

\* \* \* \*

7.    Should [the Satsudas] fail to . . . do any act as herein provided, then [the Ohs] or Trustee but without obligation to do so and without notice to or demand upon [the Satsudas] and without releasing [the Satsudas] from any obligation hereof, may . . . commence; appear in and defend any action or proceeding purporting to affect the security hereof or the rights or powers of [the Ohs] or Trustee; . . . and in exercising any such powers, incur any liability, expend whatever amounts in its absolute discretion it may deem necessary therefor, including

cost of evidence of title, employ counsel,  
and pay his reasonable fees.

Id. (Emphasis added).

Paragraph 4 of the Deed of Trust imposes on the Satsudas the obligation to bear "all costs and expenses" that the Ohs may incur in defending their security interest in the Capitol Motel. Paragraph 7, which must be read in harmony with Paragraph 4, defines, by way of example, the type of activities in which the Ohs may engage to defend those rights and, of necessity, the source of the costs and expenses that may be levied against the Satsudas should the Ohs deem themselves unsecured under the Deed of Trust.

In their Complaint, the Satsudas alleged that the Ohs breached certain warranties in the November 16, 1989 Earnest Money Sales Agreement as well as other implied warranties concerning accommodations at the Capitol Motel. Also by way of their Complaint, the Satsudas attempted to undermine the legitimacy of the January 1990 sale of the Capitol Motel by claiming that the Ohs intentionally misrepresented the condition of seven of the Motel's rooms prior to the sale. Finally, the Satsudas' Complaint argued that the Ohs misrepresented the revenues available from the operation of the Capitol Motel.

Whether each of the Satsudas' causes of action is considered in isolation or in conjunction with its companions, the objective of the Satsudas' Complaint remains constant. By initiating litigation in the District Court, the Satsudas attempted to

overturn and abandon the contractual agreements by which the Capitol Motel was conveyed to them two months earlier. Implicit in the Satsudas' assault on their contractual arrangements with the Ohs was an attack on the rights the Ohs obtained as sellers of the Capitol Motel and beneficiaries under the Deed of Trust.

The Complaint called into question two aspects of the Capitol Motel that were central to the negotiation and sale of that property in January 1990. They first challenged the Capitol Motel as a going commercial concern, alleging that the Motel's historical revenue data were misleading and that its projected earnings were overstated. The Complaint also attacked the Capitol Motel's legitimacy under Salt Lake City regulatory codes, maintaining that the Motel was renovated and expanded in violation of health, safety, and building codes and that the Motel's business license was obtained by fraud.

When the Satsudas launched their legal campaign against the Capitol Motel with their March 1990 Complaint, they directly challenged the security interest that the Ohs held in the Motel. Furthermore, by naming the Ohs as defendants, they gave the Ohs no choice but to enter the litigation to defend not only their own conduct but also the value of the Motel as security for the Satsudas' purchase obligation.

It is hard to imagine conduct by a trustor better calculated than was the Satsudas' to invoke the protections afforded the Ohs by Paragraphs 4 and 7 of the Deed of Trust. The Satsudas

voluntarily entered into the purchase of the Capitol Motel; they voluntarily executed the Deed of Trust; and they voluntarily dragged the Ohs into the District Court litigation. They now cannot be heard to protest having to discharge their obligation to fund the cost of their breach of faith with the Ohs.

And though Paragraphs 4 and 7 hold the Satsudas responsible for a broad range of the Ohs' legal costs and fees, these complementary provisions can hardly be found oppressive under the circumstances of this case. It was not the actions of an unforeseen stranger to the Deed of Trust that triggered litigation and with it the Satsudas' obligation to bear the Ohs' attorney's fees. Rather, it was the conduct of the Satsudas themselves. They, after all, filed the March 15, 1993 Complaint against the Ohs, thereby forcing the Ohs to enter and defend litigation challenging their legal rights in the Capitol Motel.

B. The January 5, 1990 Assignment Of Contract. Even if the Deed of Trust provided insufficient legal grounds for the District Court's assessment of the Ohs' attorney's fees against the Satsudas, a contemporaneous and related document supplies an adequate basis in contract to sustain the award. The fundamental document of the Ums' 1987 sale of the Capitol Motel to the Ohs is a Uniform Real Estate Contract that the Ohs and Ums executed on May 1, 1987. See Stipulated Trial Exhibit No. 1, Addendum to this Brief, No. 2. To implement the Ohs' subsequent sale of the Capitol Motel to the Satsudas in 1990, the Ohs transferred their



buyers' interest in the May 1987 Uniform Real Estate Contract to the Satsudas by executing an "Assignment of Interest" on January 5, 1990. See Stipulated Trial Exhibit No. 8; Addendum to this Brief, No. 3.

Under Paragraph 3.b. of the Assignment of Interest, and in consideration of the Ohs' transferring their interest in the 1987 Contract to them, the Satsudas agreed to "save and hold harmless [the Ohs] of and from any and all actions, suits, costs, damages, claims and demands whatsoever" that were caused by the Satsudas' own conduct." Id., ¶ 3.b. (Emphasis added).

The deliberately inclusive language of Paragraph 3.b. establishes the Satsudas' obligation to pay the Ohs' attorney's fees beyond good faith dispute. This key provision of the Assignment of Contract is not merely an indemnity provision. That is, it does not defer the Satsudas' obligation to safeguard the Ohs' financial well-being until the Ohs are found legally responsible for payment of a sum certain in costs or fees or damages. Instead, Paragraph 3.b. requires the Satsudas to come forward at the moment the Ohs are exposed to even a threat of monetary loss and insulate the Ohs from all financial harm.<sup>2</sup>

Moreover, Paragraph 3.b does not confine the Satsudas' contractual duty to hold the Ohs harmless to instances in which

---

2 Nothing in the text of Paragraph 3.b. limits its application to the defense of the Ohs in legal matters. It also is intended to protect the Ohs' interests in equitable proceedings, administrative forums, and other quasi-judicial settings.

the Satsudas breach a contractual obligation either to the Ohs or to the Ums. Nor is it limited in application to matters in which third parties, responding to "acts" of the Satsudas, initiate proceedings against the Ohs. Paragraph 3.b. is drafted quite broadly and obliges the Satsudas to hold the Ohs harmless from the consequences of any "act" by the Satsudas that ensnares the Ohs' by virtue of their former status as a party to the 1987 Contract.

Here too, the Satsudas' own conduct is the key to their obligation to pay the attorney's fees that the Ohs incurred in this case. The Satsudas commenced the District Court litigation, charging the Ohs with intentional misrepresentation in the transactions by which they acquired the Ohs' buyers' interest in the 1987 Contract. Having taken this deliberate step against the Ohs, the Satsudas became responsible for the financial consequences that their lawsuit imposed on them. The District Court recognized this straightforward cause and effect relationship--and the Satsudas' agreement to be bound by Paragraph 3.b.--when it directed the Satsudas to pay the Ohs' costs and legal fees. Because there is an adequate basis in the record to support this action by the District Court, this Court must reject the Satsudas' petition to be excused from their consensual undertaking "to hold harmless" and affirm the District Court's award of attorney's fees in favor of the Ohs.

**THERE ARE LEGALLY SUFFICIENT BASES  
IN CONTRACT TO SUPPORT THE DISTRICT COURT'S  
AWARD OF ATTORNEYS FEES IN FAVOR OF THE UMS.**

Under paragraph 15 of the May 1987 Contract, the Ums and the Ohs agreed that:

Should either party default in any of the covenants or agreements contained herein, the non-defaulting party or, should litigation be commenced, the prevailing party in litigation shall be entitled to all costs and expenses, including a reasonable attorney's fee, which may arise or accrue from enforcing or terminating this contract, or in obtaining possession of the Property, or in pursuing any remedy provided hereunder or by applicable law.

See Addendum to this Brief, No. 2 at 2.

Though Paragraph 15's mutual indemnification pact was originally binding on the Ums and the Ohs, the record shows clearly the Satsudas willingly assumed the Ohs' obligations and exposure to financial liability explicit in its terms. A proper interpretation of Paragraph 15 must be informed by the text of the Assignment of Contract. Under Paragraph 3.a. of the Assignment, the Satsudas agreed that in consideration of the Ohs transfer of the 1987 Contract to them, they would "duly keep, observe and perform all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the [1987 Contract] that are to be kept by the [Ohs]." Addendum to this Brief, No. 3.

The legal implications of Paragraph 3.b. for the Satsudas could not be more certain. As this court has recognized, an assignment of a contract does not "operate to cast upon the

assignees the duties and obligations or the liabilities imposed by the contract on the assignor." Hansen v. Green River Group, 748 P.2d 1102, 1104 n.3 (Utah App.1988). However, a well-established exception to the general rule in Hansen arises where the assignee of a contract assumes the contractual liabilities of his assignor. Id. Through the vehicle of Paragraph 3.a., that is precisely what the Satsudas did; they expressly and voluntarily agreed to "keep, observe and perform all of the terms, conditions and provisions of the [1987 Contract] that are to be kept by the [Ohs]," among them the obligation of the Ohs to be held accountable for attorney's fees the Ums may incur to vindicate their rights under the 1987 Contract.

As of January 5, 1990, the Satsudas held all of the Ohs' right, title, and interest in and all liabilities under the 1987 Contract. The Ums therefore were entitled, in the wake of the Assignment of Contract, to exercise their rights under paragraph 15 of the May 1987 Uniform Real Estate Contract to seek reimbursement of all costs and expenses, including a reasonable attorney's fee, either to enforce the terms of the Uniform Real Estate Contract against the Satsudas or to pursue any remedy made available to them by applicable law. As a result, there was an adequate contractual basis in place at the time the Ohs joined the Ums to this lawsuit as third-party defendants to impose responsibility for the Ums' attorney's fees directly on the

Satsudas. It is therefore disingenuous for the Satsudas to argue to the contrary in this appeal.

**THE OHS ARE ENTITLED TO HAVE UMS' ATTORNEY'S  
FEES AWARDED DIRECTLY AGAINST THE SATSUDA AS  
A COST OF DEFENDING THIS LITIGATION.**

In post-trial proceedings before the District Court, see ROA, V.4 at 1472-85, the Ohs argued that under the holding in Collier v. Heinz, 827 P.2d 982 (Utah App. 1982), they may recover as consequential damages against the Satsudas any attorney's fees the District Court awarded against them and in favor of the Ums. As the Ohs pointed out to the District Court, such a recovery from the Satsudas is permissible because the Ohs' litigation with the Ums was a foreseeable consequence of the Satsudas' litigation with the Ohs. ROA, V.4 at 1484-85. In their Opening Brief, the Satsudas argue that this is not an appropriate case for application of the "third party fee" rule because this case does not precisely track the facts of Collier v. Heinz.

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